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PLAN COWM SSI OV ZONI NG BOARD OF APPEALS
VI LLAGE OF SOQUTH BARRI NGTON

Publ i c Hearing: Variance Request for Property | ocated
at 15 Turning Shore Drive, South Barrington, Illinois
Regar di ng Vi nyl W ndows

Publ i ¢ Heari ng: Proposed Annexati on of Real Property
into the Village of South Barrington
PI'N Nunbers 01-22-201-014- 0000, 01-22-201-015-0000
and 01-22-201-013-0000

* * * * *

Hel d on Monday, March 9, 2026,
Conmmenci ng at the hour of approximately 7:00 p.m at
30 South Barrington Road, South Barrington, Illinois.

PLAN COWM SS|I ON PRESENT:

M chael MConbi e, Chairman
Loui se Fox, Conmi ssi oner
David Gllis, Comm ssi oner
Ant hony Abri, Conmmi ssi oner
John Kazm er, Conm ssi oner
Jul i us Kwasek, Conmm ssi oner
Tom Shuff, Comm ssi oner

ALSO PRESENT:

Ed Campbel |, Vill age Attorney

M chael Dropka, Village Adm ni strator
Paul a McConbi e, Mayor of South Barri ngton
Dam an M chal ski, Building Oficer
Menbers of the Public
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CHAl RVAN MCCOMBI E: It is right on top of
seven o'clock. | think we're going to start.
So this is the Plan Comm ssion and
Zoni ng Board of Appeals, Mnday, March 9th.
Rol |l call?

VI LLAGE ADM NI STRATOR DROPKA:  Commi ssi oner

Shuf f ?

COW SSI ONER SHUFF:  Here.

VI LLAGE ADM NI STRATOR DROPKA:  Commi ssi oner
Gllis?

COW SSI ONER G LLI'S:  Here.

VI LLAGE ADM NI STRATOR DROPKA:  Conmi ssi oner
Abri ?

COW SSI ONER ABRI ;' Here.

VI LLAGE ADM NI STRATOR DROPKA:  Commi ssi oner
Fox?

COW SSI ONER FOX:  Here.

VI LLAGE ADM NI STRATOR DROPKA:  Conm ssi oner
Kazm er ?

COW SSI ONER KAZM ER:  Her e.

VI LLAGE ADM NI STRATOR DROPKA:  Conmmi ssi oner
Kwasak?

COW SSI ONER KWASEK:  Her e.
VI LLAGE ADM NI STRATOR DROPKA:  Chai r man
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McConbi e?
CHAI RVAN MCCOMBI E:  Here.
VI LLAGE ADM NI STRATOR DROPKA:  You have a
quor um
CHAI RMAN MCCOMBI E: Thanks very nuch for
showi ng up. Very nice.
Okay. So the first itemis the
approval of the previous m nutes from Decenber 16t h.
Does anybody have any comments?

(No response.)

CHAI RVAN MCCOMBI E: | actually found
sonething. | have to find it again. Ah, here, it
Is. So on page 30, line item 12, | said thank you,

Loui se, not thank you Louie. So | would like to make
t hat one correction.

COW SSI ONER FOX: | appreciate that.

CHAI RVAN MCCOMBI E:  Ckay. Wth that one
correction, | would take a vote to approve the
m nut es.

COW SSI ONER G LLI'S:  You have a notion to
approve.

CHAI RVAN MCCOMBI E:  Thank you.

Second?

COW SSI ONER FOX:  Second.
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1 CHAl RVAN MCCOMBI E: | guess we shoul d take a
2 roll call.
3 VI LLAGE ADM NI STRATOR DROPKA:  Conmi ssi oner
4 Shuff?
5 COW SSI ONER SHUFF:  Aye.
6 VI LLAGE ADM NI STRATOR DROPKA:  Conmi ssi oner
7 Gllis?
8 COW SSI ONER G LLI'S:  Aye.
9 VI LLAGE ADM NI STRATOR DROPKA:  Commi ssi oner
10 Abri?
11 COW SSI ONER ABRI @ Aye.
12 VI LLAGE ADM NI STRATOR DROPKA:  Conmi ssi oner
13 Fox?
14 COW SSI ONER FOX:  Aye.
15 VI LLAGE ADM NI STRATOR DROPKA:  Commi ssi oner
16 Kazmer?
17 COW SSI ONER KAZM ER: Yes.
18 VI LLAGE ADM NI STRATOR DROPKA:  Comm ssi oner
19 Kwasek?
20 COW SSI ONER KWASEK:  Aye.
21 VI LLAGE ADM NI STRATOR DROPKA:  Chai r man
22 McConbi e?
23 CHAI RMAN MCCOMBI E: Yes.
24 Ckay. At this tinme we'll open -- W
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have two itens on the agenda, both of them public
hearings. |If there's anybody that would like to talk
about anything else, now would be the tinme to cone up
and tal k.

UNI DENTI FI ED SPEAKER:  Does that include for
the entire neeting or as it pertains --

CHAI RMAN MCCOMBIE: As to the two itens, you
can definitely talk then, but if you have sonething
el se you would like to talk about other than those,
when we have those, we'll have public coment --

UNI DENTI FI ED SPEAKER: Perfect. Thank you.

CHAl RVAN MCCOMBI E: -- during the public
hearing portions of it.

Good. Ckay. Then | will get to the
first item which is a public hearing for a variance
request for the property |located at 15 Turni ng Shore
Drive, South Barrington, regarding vinyl w ndows. |
don't know about additional building regulations, but
t he vinyl w ndows.

At this tine, | would take a notion
to open the public hearing.

COW SSI ONER FOX:  So noved.

CHAI RMVAN MCCOMBI E: Second?

COW SSI ONER KWASEK:  Second.
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CHAI RMVAN MCCOMBI E: Rol | cal I ?

VI LLAGE ADM NI STRATOR DROPKA:
Shuf f ?

COW SSI ONER SHUFF:  Aye.

VI LLAGE ADM NI STRATOR DROPKA:
Gllis?

COW SSI ONER G LLI'S: Aye.

VI LLAGE ADM NI STRATOR DROPKA:

Abri ?

COW SSI ONER ABRI:  Aye.

VI LLAGE ADM NI STRATOR DROPKA:
Fox?

COW SSI ONER FOX:  Yes.

VI LLAGE ADM NI STRATOR DROPKA:
Kazm er ?

COW SSI ONER KAZM ER:  Yes.

VI LLAGE ADM NI STRATOR DROPKA:
Kwasek?

COMM SSI ONER KWASEK:  Yes.

Comm ssi oner

Comm ssi oner

Comm ssi oner

Comm ssi oner

Comm ssi oner

Comm ssi oner

VI LLAGE ADM NI STRATOR DROPKA:  Chai r man
Mc Conbi e?
CHAI RVAN MCCOMBI E:  Yes.
| s there sonmeone here to -- who is

going to be doing a presentation?
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MR ZHAPAROV: Yes. Hello.

(Wtness sworn.)

CHAl RMVAN MCCOMBI E:  State your nane

MR ZHAPAROV: Mederbek is ny first nane,
| ast name Z-h-a-p-a-r-o-v.

CHAI RMAN MCCOMBI E: Thank you.

COW SSI ONER KWASEK: | have a question. As
this is the Zoning Board, does the requirenment for
certain types of windows, is that in the zoning
ordi nance or is that under municipal code?

CHAI RVAN MCCOMBI E: Dam an?

(Wtness sworn.)

MR MCHALSKI: To ny know edge, it's the
Vil l age code.

COW SSI ONER KWASEK:  So it's Village code.

So why is that before the Zoning
Boar d?

MR MCHALSKI: So the gentleman -- |If | may,
the gentleman installed vinyl windows to his house.
When | stopped the job, the construction proceeded
wi thout the permit. The w ndows were not required at
that time to have a permt, so the gentlenman repl aced
t he wi ndows, and when | went for a walk through in

regards to the construction without the permt, then
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| noticed that the windows are replaced. And |

i nformed himthat wi ndows are not in conpliance and
with the Village code, and they're not permtted in
the Village code. So he was asking nme to | eave those
w ndows. It was approved by HOA, and | said
regardl ess of HOA approval, they are not in
conpliance with Village code. He says please, let ne
| eave those in. |s there any different avenue of

| eavi ng those windows in, and | said you nmay ask for
a variance, if you -- but I"'mnot -- I"mnot going to
guarantee that it's going to be approved.

COW SSI ONER KWASEK:  Understood. But that's
Village code, not zoning ordinance.

How does the Zoning Board deal wth
a matter that's not a zoning code issue?

Per haps the attorney can address
t hat .

ATTORNEY CAMPBELL: Well, would you repeat
t he question?

COM SSI ONER KWASEK:  Okay. This itemis
about the material of the wi ndows not conplying with
Village code. That code is not part of the zoning
ordinance. This Board is the Zoning Board & Pl an

Comm ssion. So why is the Zoning Board reviewng a
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1 non-zoning issue?

2 ATTORNEY CAMPBELL: Well, | amnot going to

3 go on the record as com ng down one way or the other
4 on that right now, just because it seens |ike there
5 should be a nore careful analysis than | can give off
6 the cuff.

7 My initial take is that the code

8 is -- it's applicable throughout the jurisdiction

9 here, so it's sonething that conmes in your decision
10 meaking, | think, and I'll leave it at that for right
11 now.

12 CHAI RVAN MCCOMBI E: Julius, | would say this,
13 and | do agree with you as you brought it up, and |
14 Dbrought it up to Daman also. |'mvery concerned

15 that we're even listening to this conversation,

16 because | didn't think it was applicable.

17 COW SSI ONER KWASEK: Do we then apply

18 variances for anything under nunicipal code that

19 cones before us?
20 CHAI RVAN MCCOMBI E:  Again, we'll get into
21 this at the end. | believe you're right. W are not
22 going to apply the variances to this. Wre -- W
23 can't variance -- In ny mnd, we can't put a variance
24 on sonet hing we have no jurisdiction on.
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And the other thing that | really am
concerned about is |I'm concerned about changi ng
Village ordinances on this commttee, which is in the
wrong place. That's not --

COW SSI ONER KWASEK:  You nean recomend it.

CHAl RVAN MCCOMBI E: Yeah, recommend that we
change Village ordi nances here, at this |evel, and
it's just -- it's -- | don't think it's a right place
for it to be at.

So | do agree that it doesn't seem
logical. | think the thing is, because he's going
t hrough all of the stuff to get here. M thought is
to listen, but I don't know how we can naeke a
deci sion to change anyt hi ng.

COW SSI ONER KWASEK:  You nean to recomend a
change to the Vill age Board.

CHAI RVAN MCCOMBI E:  Ri ght .

COW SSI ONER KWASEK:  Ckey doke.

CHAI RVAN MCCOMBI E:  Ckay. That's the
preanble to that this evening so you know where we're
at on this whol e thing.

So | believe that you' re asking for
sonet hing that we don't have the ability to grant

you. That's ny belief.
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And so | nean, you can start your
presentation at that point, but we'll see where it
goes.

MR ZHAPAROV: | don't know where to start
even. Wen we purchased the house, the house had
already the lowest quality vinyl wi ndows already
installed. That's why | was just trying to replace
it for a better quality windows, and | didn't know
that | needed to go through this process. |If | would
know, | would do it a little better, but the quality
that -- the quality w ndows right now, which
Installed, is nmuch, nuch better than it used to --
had in this house. And I'mjust asking for
permssion to leave as it is. But if it's sonehow
di sturbing the code of the Village, | nean, we'll try
to do sonet hi ng.

CHAI RMAN MCCOMBI E: Ckay. You know, in ny
opi nion, when | | ooked at this and when | read it, |
said, you know, okay, and we had tal ked about it. |
talked to -- | tal ked about this previously and the
guality is a lot better. But | understand -- Did it
go to Building & Zoning, Danmi an, discussion on vinyl
wi ndows?

MR MCHALSKI: Yes. | brought it to the
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Bui | ding & Zoning Conm ttee regardi ng the vinyl

w ndows to approve -- to be approved in the Vill age,
and then | brought two different types of vinyl

w ndows: One was this, that you can see on the
tabl e; and the second one was a European style of
vinyl windows as well. And the Conmttee deci ded
that the vinyl w ndows would not be permtted under
the Village code.

CHAl RMVAN MCCOMVBI E:  Ckay. | -- You know,
It's gone before Building & Zoning, and they've
al ready rul ed once again it's not acceptabl e by
Village ordinance. W're -- W can't grant you a
vari ance for sonething that the Village has said no
to.

MR. ZHAPAROV: So does it nean | have to
repl ace all the wi ndows back to the -- whatever the
code dictates?

CHAl RVAN MCCOMBI E: ( Shaki ng head.)

MR. ZHAPAROV: But it's new wi ndows. | nean,
you guys have to understand that | spent al nost
28,000 for the windows, which is better quality than
the previous windows. And if | would have put the
wi ndow which is by code, it's over ny budget, |ike

nmore t han doubl e. | can't handl e that.
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| can show you the estinmates from
the conpanies and this was the -- in ny budget, and
that's why | picked vinyl windows. And it's the sane
wi ndows as this, the double color inside white,
outside is dark brown, black. I'mjust -- | just
don't see the -- how | can replace the new w ndows.
If | just did one thing replace for new wi ndows, then
| need to get rid of them and then | need to
purchase new wi ndows with the sane code. So it wll
cost ne like three tinmes nore than what | expected.

COW SSI ONER FOX:  Can | ask a question?

WAS -- WAs there no permt for --
You said there was not a requirenent for the permt
at the time for the wi ndow repl acenent.

MR MCHALSKI: That's correct. The Village
does not require permt or did not require permt for
t he wi ndow repl acenent; however, the Village code is
posted online. So on our web page there is a
muni ci pal code that you can research and go through
Since we didn't have the permt for the w ndow
repl acenent, none of the docunents were provided to
the Buil ding Departnent, and there were no
| nspections perforned. So that was caught when |

caught the construction without the permt and posted
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a stop work order.
COWMM SSI ONER KWASEK:  Did you see the
exi sting windows? Did you see they were vinyl

wi ndows, the existing ones?

MR MCHALSKI: No, | did not. 1've never
gone - -

COW SSI ONER KWASEK:  So you never noticed
t hat ?

MR MCHALSKI: No, |'ve never gone inside to
t hat hone.

MR ZHAPAROV: | have all the videos when
purchased the house. | can showit to you if it's
necessary. | have all videos, every room every

door, every w ndow. Everywhere | took a video before
| did sonmething in the house.

COW SSI ONER KWASEK:  Can | share ny opi ni on?

CHAI RMAN MCCOMBI E: O cour se.

COW SSI ONER KWASEK:  Since this itemisn't
an itemthat we would normally make a recommendati on
to the Village Board on anyway, in ny opinion, if he
had vinyl wndows and if at the tinme a permt was not
required for replacenent of the w ndows, and he spent
all of this noney and replaced the old w ndows wth

new better w ndows, | would give hima pass as being
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a reasonabl e person.

CHAI RVAN MCCOMBIE: |'mvery concerned --

COW SSI ONER KWASEK: Ul timately, it's the
Village Board that decides whether this is a variance
or not. W just recommend.

CHAl RVAN MCCOMBI E: | know. [|'mvery
concerned that the precedent we're setting here is
that if you don't |ook at the code, if you nmake a
decision, and you go with it and build it, we'll
forgive you the fact that you didn't | ook at the
code, which is published, it's all there for
everybody to read.

COW SSI ONER KWASEK:  So everybody t hi nks
t hat the average honeowner goes and reads the code.
You read Village ordinances, right? |'msure every
one of us here has done that, right?

CHAI RMAN MCCOMBI E:  |'"msure that what it is
Is there to help the honmeowner

Had you lived here previously?

MR. ZHAPAROV: No, | just purchased | ast
year. | have conpleted ny work in Septenber,
October. |I'mwaiting for this variance only to get
approved. |'mwaiting alnost for four nonths to get

in, to nmove in. |I'mliving nmonth to nmonth right now,
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because of this variance, because | cannot pass a
final inspection because of this w ndows. And when |
got the quotes for the windows, | can show you all of
the receipts. | paid for this al nost $21, 000, and
when | was quoted the right wi ndows by code, it was
over $50,000, 40 sonething or 50,000. And then
that's ny logical decision was if it's a better
quality, if it's a better wi ndow than existing, |
mean, it doesn't make any sense what is the code
needs to be. So that is why ny |ogical decision very
sinple, that is why | put this type of w ndow.

CHAI RMAN MCCOMBI E: You ended up having to
get a construction permt, right?

MR ZHAPAROV: Yeah. Yeah. Everything was
t here, yes.

CHAI RMVAN MCCOMBI E:  But you had to get a
construction permt at some point, right?

MR ZHAPAROV: Yes, we did. | did get all of
the permts.

MR. M CHALSKI: After the stop work order was
| ssued, yes.

CHAI RVAN MCCOMBI E:  So what el se are you
doing to the house besides the w ndows?

MR ZHAPAROV: Pretty nuch everything: new
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bat hroons, all new fl oors, new paining, patching,
kitchen cabi nets, painting garage, exterior -- like
exterior, |like how do you call, the backyard.

CHAI RMVAN MCCOMBI E:  Landscapi ng?

MR. M CHALSKI: Pati o.

CHAl RVAN MCCOMVBI E:  Pati o.

MR. ZHAPAROV: Patio bricks, and we did the
shoreline as well. There wasn't anything on the
shoreline. W built a shoreline as well.

CHAl RVAN MCCOVBI E:  Well, if you were doing
all of those things, it would have been wonderful if
you went to the Village and got a building permt,
and then he would have told you you can't do the
wi ndow t hi ng.

MR. ZHAPAROV: Yeah. But in -- That's why
we're here. That's why we are.

MR MCHALSKI: So M. Chairman, if | may --
If | can say sonething. |[If the Board, Planning &
Zoning Conmission, is not confortable with a
recommendation to the Village Board, then maybe we
should table it or recomend for an ACC approval and
review, Architectural Commttee.

CHAI RMVAN MCCOVBI E:  To send it to the ACC?

MR. M CHALSKI :  Uh- huh.
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COMM SSI ONER KWASEK:  That's not the right
body either. 1It's not an ACCitem |It's a Village
Board item Village code is Village Board, right,
Board nenbers?

MAYOR MCCOMBI E:  They could table this,
since there's some m sconmuni cati on about, you know,
what commttee, and sonetines Building & Zoning does
t ake --

CHAI RMAN MCCOMBI E:  Rai se your right hand.

(Wtness sworn.)

MAYOR MCCOMBI E:  Paul a McConbi e, Mayor.

And so sonetines the Building &
Zoning Commttee will also take issues beyond what is
typically on the Building & Zoning Commttee, but
that is nuch nore rare for you to do that. But
tabling until you figure this out would probably be
better than just ending the, you know, or tabling
It -- or not tabling it, but referring it to another
time. O you can table it since there's so nuch
confusion on which conmmttee it belongs in.

CHAl RMVAN MCCOMBIE: So | think -- | really
bel i eve the thing about what we're | ooking at is that
the --

MAYOR MCCOMBIE: |'msorry, it could go to
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the Village Board too, just |ike Julius said.

CHAI RVAN MCCOMBI E: You know, Building &
Zoning went there, and they voted no on vinyl
wi ndows. And this is clearly what they reconmend for
the Village. And we would be going against that, if
what we did is say yes, we recommend it. Building &
Zoni ng was m staken when they | ooked at, which is
crazy. And we don't -- W've not |ooked at all the
information. W have not |ooked at all of the
details, and I think us making a decision on whether
vinyl wi ndows are good or bad, | don't think we
should be making it.

| don't mnd tabling this and
sending it back to -- | guess we're sending it to the
Village Board without a recommendation. 1Is that what
we woul d be doi ng?

ATTORNEY CAMPBELL: If you can't reach a
consensus it definitely -- and you're saying it's not
your jurisdiction, then you wouldn't really have |
don't think grounds to nake a reconmendati on.

CHAI RVAN MCCOMBIE: | think that's probably
what |'mthinking that we don't have -- W don't have
a reason to nmake a recommendati on, because it's not

i n other purview to be doing that.
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1 Wi t .

2 (Wtness sworn.)

3 MR. BODKIN. Are you saying there would be no
4 public coment on that at this tinme?

5 COW SSI ONER FOX:  You need to give your nane
6 and address.

7 CHAI RVAN MCCOMBI E: Ji m Bodki n, 13 Turni ng

8 Shore, South Barrington.

9 CHAl RVAN MCCOMBI E: So here is the problem
10 guess we could take public comment. You have to

11 remenber, we're going to send this back to -- The

12 thought is to send it back to the Board and say this
13 is not inside of our purviewto be |ooking at this,
14 and we don't feel that this is sonething that we

15 should be involved in. W' ve not done the research
16 on this. W have not done anything that says vinyl
17 is acceptable. And for us to nmake a recomendati on,
18 | don't think we've done research on it, it makes no
19 sense at all, and I think we're doing a disservice to
20 the Village. Because once we said yes to this, once
21 we would say we understand your dilenma. W
22 synpat hi ze where you went and all the rest of that
23 makes us feel that we should say yes, once we say
24 that, we're saying that vinyl w ndows are acceptable

Paszki ewi cz Court Reporting
(618) 307-9320


https://spreporting.com/

REPORT OF PROCEEDI NGS
March 09, 2026 Page 21

© 00 N oo o b~ w N

N NN NN R R R R R R R R R
A W N P O © 0 N O O M W N L O

in the Village. That's what we're saying. And |I'm
very unconfortable with setting a precedent.
This Board sets precedent, and |

don't want to set a precedent.

VMR, ZHAPAROV: May |?

CHAI RVAN MCCOMBI E: Pl ease.

MR ZHAPAROV: The reason |I'm here asking for
a variance, an acceptance for this property is
because | have done the work, and I was not able to
put the right w ndows because of ny budget. And
you're not allowing to the Village code, you are not
allow ng to everyone to have vinyl wi ndows. It
doesn't nean that you guys are changing the code in
the Village. 1t's an exception, a variance. That is
why |'m here today.

CHAl RMVAN MCCOMBI E:  Once you create a
vari ance, what happens is that now other people can
cone before us and say | have a problem And the one
thing we've always -- which has been a key thing, is
that variances can't be granted because of dollars
and cents. That's at the top of our list. That can
not happen. |If it costs nore to do sonething, and
that's the reason you don't want to do it, it can't

be the reason you don't follow code. It can't be.
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That is never a reason to not follow code.

COM SSI ONER ABRI:  So may | just suggest
t hat under the objection, Julius's objection
initially this is not wthin our purview, we should
cite that issue and pass this on to the Board w t hout
action.

CHAI RVAN MCCOMBI E: What does everybody t hi nk
about that?

COW SSIONER G LLIS: | think so, right up to
t he Board.

CHAI RVAN MCCOMBI E:  Ckay. So Jim what
they're going to do, is we're going to give this to
t he Board, and the Board will then have a neeting on
this to talk about it, and then public comment w ||
be able to be given at the Board neeting while
they' re making their decision, okay?

MR BODKI N  Ckay.

CHAI RVAN MCCOMBI E:  And the Village Board
wi |l ask for comments during this.

MR BCODKI N  Ckay.

COMM SSI ONER KWASEK:  And that's inportant to
know t hat woul d have been the procedure anyway. W
only recommend. We don't grant anything. W

recommend to the Board.
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CHAl RVAN MCCOMBI E: Tr ue.

MR. ZHAPAROV: That's it.

CHAl RVAN MCCOMBIE: So at this point, | would
take a notion to | guess allow this information that
we have on the vinyl windows to go to the Village
Board so they can nmake a determ nati on whet her vinyl
wi ndows for this hone at 15 Turning Shore Drive is
acceptable to the Board.

So we're naking a recommendati on
that they reviewit.

MAYOR MCCOMBI E:  Are you still in the public
heari ng?

CHAl RVAN MCCOMBI E: W are.

MAYOR MCCOMBI E:  Ckay.

CHAl RMVAN MCCOVBI E: We're taking a notion
i nsi de the public hearing.

Shoul d we cl ose the public hearing
and then make a notion?

ATTORNEY CAMPBELL: | think that's optional.
| mean, it's going to be a public -- ultimately a
public record, right?

CHAl RMVAN MCCOVBI E: Yes, it wll.

ATTORNEY CAMPBELL: | don't have an issue
wi th you staying public.
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CHAIl RVAN MCCOMBI E: W coul d make a notion
that we just did, we have that public portion of it,
and then cl ose the public hearing.

ATTORNEY CAMPBELL: | don't see why. Do you
have sonme concerns?

CHAI RMVAN MCCOMBI E: | don't have any concern.

MAYOR MCCOMBI E:  You shoul d cl ose the public
hearing. That is our typical protocol, and then
not i on.

CHAl RVAN MCCOMBI E: Wy don't we do that
t hen.

So let's take a notion to close the
public hearing, unless there's anything else. W']|
close it, and then we will make a notion to nake the
reconmendat i on.

COWM SSI ONER KWASEK:  So noved.

COW SSI ONER KAZM ER: Second.

CHAl RMVAN MCCOMBI E:  Ckay. Roll call?

This is to close the public hearing.

VI LLAGE ADM NI STRATOR DROPKA:  Conmmi ssi oner
Shuf f ?

COW SSI ONER SHUFF:  Aye.

VI LLAGE ADM NI STRATOR DROPKA:  Conmi ssi oner
Gllis?
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COW SSI ONER G LLI'S:  Yes.
VI LLAGE ADM NI STRATOR DROPKA:

Abri ?

COW SSI ONER ABRI:  Aye.

VI LLAGE ADM NI STRATOR DROPKA:
Fox?

COWM SSI ONER FOX: Yes.

VI LLAGE ADM NI STRATOR DROPKA:
Kazm er?

COWM SSI ONER KAZM ER:  Yes.

VI LLAGE ADM NI STRATOR DROPKA
Kwasek?

COMM SSI ONER KWASEK:  Yes.

VI LLAGE ADM NI STRATOR DROPKA:
Mc Combi e?

CHAI RVAN MCCOMBI E: Yes.

Conmm ssi oner

Conm ssi oner

Conm ssi oner

Conmmi ssi oner

Chai r man

kay. So at this nonment we could

take a notion that we had started to craft. W

started to take a notion to -- nmake a notion to make

a recommendation to the Board to review the vinyl

wi ndows at 15 Turning Shore Drive in South Barrington

t hat have been installed in the hone.

COW SSI ONER G LLI'S:  You have a noti on.

COW SSI ONER KWASEK:  Second.
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1 CHAl RVAN MCCOMBI E: (Ckay. Roll call?
2 VI LLAGE ADM NI STRATOR DROPKA:  Conmmi ssi oner
3 Shuff?
4 COW SSI ONER SHUFF:  Aye.
5 VI LLAGE ADM NI STRATOR DROPKA:  Commi ssi oner
6 GIllis?
7 COW SSI ONER G LLI'S:  Yes.
8 VI LLAGE ADM NI STRATOR DROPKA:  Comnmi ssi oner
9 Abri?
10 COW SSI ONER ABRI:  Aye.
11 VI LLAGE ADM NI STRATOR DROPKA:  Comm ssi oner
12 Fox?
13 COW SSI ONER FOX:  Yes.
14 VI LLAGE ADM NI STRATOR DROPKA:  Commi ssi oner
15 Kazmer?
16 COW SSI ONER KAZM ER:  Yes.
17 VI LLAGE ADM NI STRATOR DROPKA:  Conmmi ssi oner
18 Kwasek?
19 COW SSI ONER KWASEK:  Yes.
20 VI LLAGE ADM NI STRATOR DROPKA:  Chai r man
21 McConbi e?
22 CHAI RVAN MCCOMBI E:  Yes.
23 kay. They will tell you when
24 the -- when the Village Board neeting is going to be
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that that would be part of.
kay. So the second item on our
agenda is a public hearing for a proposed annexation
of the real estate property into the Village of South
Barrington, pin nunbers 01-22-201-014, 01-22-201-015
and 01-22-201-013.
At this tinme, take a notion to open

t he public hearing.

COW SSI ONER FOX:  So noved

CHAI RMVAN MCCOMBI E:  Second?

COW SSI ONER ABRI: | second.

CHAl RVAN MCCOMBI E:  Ckay. Roll call?

VI LLAGE ADM NI STRATOR DROPKA:  Conmi ssi oner
Shuf f ?

COWM SSI ONER SHUFF:  Aye.

VI LLAGE ADM NI STRATOR DROPKA:  Conmi ssi oner
Gllis?

COWM SSI ONER G LLI'S:  Aye.

VI LLAGE ADM NI STRATOR DROPKA:  Commi ssi oner
Abri ?

COWM SSI ONER ABRI:  Aye.

VI LLAGE ADM NI STRATOR DROPKA:  Conmmi ssi oner
Fox?

COW SSI ONER FOX:  Yes.
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VI LLAGE ADM NI STRATOR DROPKA:  Conmi ssi oner
Kazm er?

COWM SSI ONER KAZM ER:  Yes.

VI LLAGE ADM NI STRATOR DROPKA:  Conm ssi oner
Kwasek?

COMM SSI ONER KWASEK:  Yes.

VI LLAGE ADM NI STRATOR DROPKA:  Chai rman
McConbi e?

CHAl RVAN MCCOMBI E:  Yes.

kay. Wo is going to do the
applicant -- Who is going to be the applicant for the
presentation?

VI LLAGE ADM NI STRATOR DROPKA: Chairman, | do
have a letter that | would like to -- that was
received before the deadline that | would like to
read into the record.

CHAI RVAN MCCOMBI E:  Ckay.

VI LLAGE ADM NI STRATOR DROPKA:  Dear Chairman,
| hope you are well. Please be advised that the
I ndi vi dual beneficiaries of the land trust that holds
legal title to 306 South Al gonqui n Road, Barrington,
IIlinois, Charter Bank and Trust, a national banking
associ ation, as trustee, dated 5/23/96, have sought

to engage our law firmto represent themin
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opposition to any attenpt by the Village of South
Barrington, Illinois, to annex the subject property
into the Village over their objection.

It has been brought to ny attention
that there are -- there apparently is a hearing,
which is currently scheduled for March 9, 2026 at
7:00 p.m, regarding this potential annexation of the
subj ect property and the adjacent properties by the
Vi || age.

Unfortunately, | have a conflict
with the scheduled tinme and date of these proceedi ngs
and therefore, formally request a brief 28 day
continuance of this matter w thout any further
subj ect action taken by the Village in the interimin
order to permt me to further investigate the matter
and to attend these proceedi ngs.

Pl ease let me know if you would |ike
to discuss the matter further.

Thank you for your consideration.

Si gned Perl & Goodsnyder, Ltd., Christopher
Goodsnyder .
CHAl RVAN MCCOMBI E: What bank is this?
VI LLAGE ADM NI STRATOR DROPKA: It would

appear that it is an attorney for one of the subject
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properties that is being |isted as annexed or
potential ly annexed.

CHAI RVAN MCCOMBI E:  Ckay. Was the Vill age
going to make a presentation as to the annexation of
t he properties?

VI LLAGE ADM NI STRATOR DROPKA: | don't --
| -- We can answer any questions. | think that the
docunentation is there for your review,

This was part of a |arger piece of
property back in 2002, which was apart of a nursery,
and the entire area, | believe it was seven
parcels -- seven were annexed into the Vill age at
that tinme in 2002, and then the -- These three
parcel s went ahead and petitioned the Court for -- to
be di sconnected later in that year of 2002, which
transpired with that Court ruling in |ate 2002.

And then fast forward to now, 24
years later, trying to nove forward with -- There has
been a determ nation by Cook County President Ton
Preckw nkl e, has routinely nentioned that
uni ncor por ated parcels of Cook County, she wants
annexed into the village, to help pronote services,
public safety, and for those reasons, it was put on

the Village Board agenda in January, and the Village
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Board referred the matter here, to the Plan
Comm ssion, to which then we posted public notice,
and here we are tonight.

| don't know if you have any further
guesti ons.

MAYOR MCCOMBI E:  Paul a McConbie. Wuld you
li ke to mention the fact we spent an hour with him
| ast week, if this is the larger property. 1Is that
t he same person that canme in and spent an hour in the
afternoon until four o'clock?

VI LLAGE ADM NI STRATOR DROPKA: | don't know
whose | awer this is, to be perfectly honest with
you.

MAYOR MCCOMBIE: Is that the parcel -- that's
t he other |arger parcel.

VI LLAGE ADM NI STRATOR DROPKA: It does not
say specific to --

MAYOR MCCOMBIE: It's only one trust, and the

gentleman told us he was in a trust and gave us his

nane.

CHAl RVAN MCCOMBI E: Wich one is it, is it
0147

VI LLAGE ADM NI STRATOR DROPKA: | think this
IS -- Yes, | think this is the farthest -- the
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farthest parcel to the west.

MAYOR MCCOMBI E:  To the west?

Ch, that's a different parcel.

VI LLAGE ADM NI STRATOR DROPKA: To the east,
ny apol ogies, to the east.

MAYOR MCCOMBI E:  That was his parcel.

CHAI RVAN MCCOMBI E:  That's that long thin
par cel .

VI LLAGE ADM NI STRATOR DROPKA: Nope. Nope.
The ot her one.

COW SSI ONER A LLI'S:  The bi gger.

MR. M CHALSKI: The farm

VI LLAGE ADM NI STRATOR DROPKA: And yes, to
the Mayor's point, we had spent sone tinme either
Mayor and nyself or nyself, we have spent tine with
all three of the property owners, as well as it has
been brought to our attention during the course of
this that one of the parcels may be under contract,
and to which the Mayor and | net with the potenti al
buyers of one of the parcels and expl ai ned the
situation, and the public hearing that we did not -
under oath we had no idea at the tinme of this whole
process that there was a potential sale or that it

was under contract.
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| do want to bring your attention to
a matter too as well, because it canme up fromone of
the property owners, that the draft proposal would be
that they -- the parcels would annexed into the Al
zoning district, and that is even though the m ni mum
| ot size is 5 acres, per municipal code, the -- with
regards to forced annexations, the properties being
annexed need to be annexed into the Village's nost
restrictive zoning classifications. So they would be
annexed in -- the proposal would be they would be
annexed into Al, even though one of them does not
conformcurrently, because one is already under 5.
So it would be 4.7 or sonething like that. They
woul d be annexed into the nost restrictive, and then
we could then delineate that fromthere.

CHAI RMVAN MCCOMBI E:  Ckay.

VI LLAGE ADM NI STRATOR DROPKA: But that's why
that's |ike that.

CHAI RVAN MCCOMBI E: Ckay. So at this tine
then that explains what's going on with the Vill age,
where we are with that.

So there are sone people here, who
woul d Iike to tal k about the property bei ng annexed?

MR. DEMLON Yes, there are.
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CHAl RVAN MCCOMBI E: Ckay. |If you would cone
up.

MAYOR MCCOMBI E:  You didn't open the public
heari ng.

CHAIl RVAN MCCOMBI E:  Yes, we did. W had a
vote on it.

(Wtness sworn.)

CHAI RMAN MCCOMBI E:  State your nane.

MR. DEMLOW Henry Dem ow, property owner all
the parcels related to 306 Al gonqui n Road.

He-n-r-y De-ml-o0o-w, Jr.

CHAI RVAN MCCOMBI E:  So that we know whi ch
property, we have the --

MR. DEMLON This is going to be the parcel
furthest to the west. The last three digits of the
pin 014.

COW SSI ONER G LLI'S:  The thinnest.

CHAI RVAN MCCOMBI E:  Okay.

MR. DEMLOW The statenent of objection to
this proposed annexation of the territory that's
I nclusive of ny pin. As background, this entire
property that's being proposed for annexation was
acquired by ny father alnbst 65 years ago as part of

a much larger farm Upon his passing in 1990, he
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wi |l ed various acreage to each of his three children
to pass on, resulting in the three pins that are

i ncluded in this proposed annexation and associ at ed
with the address 306 Al gonquin Road.

As such, the division of the
original parcel of 21-odd acres was not for the
pur pose of sale, devel opnent or any type of
residential construction. That entire tinme going al
the way back to the early sixties, our famly has had
ownership interest of specific parcels of this
particul ar proposed annexation, and as a result, it's
only been used for agricultural purposes. Wth such
agricultural use, the need for any additional
muni ci pal services fromthe Village of South
Barrington is really non-existent. Any services that
are needed are already avail able from Cook County,
which is where the tax dollars are going.

Wil e the property sought to be
annexed i s bounded on three sides by the Village of
South Barrington, such land on all three sides have
not all been subdivided into lots, as provided for in
the Illinois Minicipal Code 65 ILCS 5/7-1, etc. |I'm
just bringing that to your attention for the public

record.
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The i nvoluntary annexation into the
Village wll add another |ayer of regulations,
effectively reducing property rights for the owner,
maki ng things nuch nore restrictive. Beyond making
t he ownershi p nore cunbersone, the annexation wl |
also result in higher property taxes, which again,
are increasing the cost of ownership pretty nuch in
perpetuity.

The annexation, as previously
mentioned by the Deputy Clerk of ny specific parcel,
will also cause it to be nonconformng with South
Barrington Village Code, as anended, with it to be
initially automatically zoned as Al, which is 5-acre
mnimum This parcel, absent road frontage, is 4.74
acres.

My expectation in the future was to
| eave this particular parcel to nmy children for their
enjoynent, as ny father did for ne. Under the
current circunstances, it looks like that's |ess
| i kely to happen.

| guess a question to the Planning
Comm ssion is: Wat's the reason this proposed
annexation is being considered now, as there really

haven't been any changes in use of the property since
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1 the prior notice of annexation was received, | think
2 back in February of 2002. ['ll continue, if that's
3 sonething that you would like to address when

4 concl ude.

5 Related to that, what's really

6 changed over the last 25 years that warrants this

7 action by the Village of South Barrington?

8 And agai n, what does the Vill age of
9 South Barrington hope to acconplish by annexing this
10 property?

11 It's al so ny understandi ng that not
12 all of the property owners associated with pins
13 applicable to this particul ar proposed annexation had
14 received a 10-day notice of the annexation and of
15 this hearing, specifically fromthe Village of South
16 Barrington.
17 And | guess in closing, would this
18 involuntary annexation be in your best interest, if
19 you were in ny shoes?
20 That's all | have. | appreciate a
21 response to any questions.
22 COM SSIONER G LLI'S: | have a question.
23 Do you have access of f Al gonquin
24 Road to your property?
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MR. DEMLON The access to ny parcel is
through the pin ending in 015, which | specifically
requested fromthe Illinois Departnent of
Transportati on when the road was w dened fromtwo
| anes to four lanes. So at the current, there is no
direct access to ny pin, which is another, as you
br ought up, issue.

COW SSI ONER G LLI'S:  The m ddl e property?

MR DEMLON The m ddl e has access. The
skinny one to the west does not.

COM SSIONER G LLI'S: So that's how you get
to yours?

MR. DEMLOW Correct.

MR. SHUFF. And what's the agricultural use?

MR DEMLON Oiginally, the agricultural use
was soybeans and vegetables. Over the years, due to
t he surroundi ng devel opnents, there has been changes
to the property as a result of those devel opnents,
primarily issues wth drainage, which have never been
adequately resolved. So over the |ast several years,
that particular agricultural use is still two part:
trees are being grown, and there's al so vegetabl es
being planted. In fact, this past year, | put

addi tional seedlings to supplenment the trees that
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were al ready there.
Any ot her questions for ne?

CHAI RVAN MCCOMBI E:  So you said that sone
peopl e had not received a 10-day notice?

MR DEMLON M understanding is that one of
the property owners has not received a formal notice
fromthe Village.

VI LLAGE ADM NI STRATOR DROPKA: | can address
that, and that is -- | don't know why that woul d be
t he case, because | have three certified receipts
here to the three property owners. Al three were
sent.

MR DEMLOW Al right.

CHAl RVAN MCCOMBI E: Okay. Again, the -- In
t he begi nning, you know, what M ke had tal ked about,
he had tal ked about the fact that Cook County is
asking that these small --

MR. DEMLOW  Uni ncor porated areas.

CHAI RVAN MCCOMBI E: Uni ncor por at ed areas be
I ncorporated into the surrounding villages so that
the services inside the village are readily avail abl e
to these people, which they should be. And going to
Cook County for police protection or sonething |ike

that, is a difficult task to get sonebody out here
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1 when there's nobody out here. | nean, | understand
2 where they're comng from So that's the reason for
3 it. And | don't think it's -- | don't think it's a
4 crazy thought.

5 MR. DEMLON | guess ny response to that

6 logic is we're tal king about vacant farn and, so.

7 COWM SSI ONER SHUFF: That's being currently

8 used.

9 MR. DEMLOWN Correct, but --

10 COW SSI ONER SHUFF:  So it's not vacant.

11 MR. DEMLOW It's categorized as vacant | and.
12 There's no structures on it.

13 Police protection, | don't think

14 anybody is going to cone in and steal a tree, so.

15 CHAI RMVAN MCCOMVBI E: You woul d be surprised.
16 MR. DEMLOW At |east from perspective, there
17 isn't a concern, and there's really little or no

18 other services at that point the Village can provide
19 that are beyond what is avail able through Cook
20 County.
21 CHAI RMVAN MCCOMBI E: It | ooks |ike from what
22 we're seeing on 13, there is a -- There's a building
23 there.
24 MR. DEMLOWN There is. That's not a parcel
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that | have direct involvenent in at this tine.

CHAI RVAN MCCOMBI E:  Ch, | thought you said
t hat none of the parcels have any --

MR DEMLOW | did not say that.

COW SSI ONER SHUFF:  But there is a building
on the property.

MR. DEMLOWN Correct. On one of the pins
there are structures.

CHAI RMVAN MCCOMBI E:  Ckay.

MR DEMLOW Thank you.

CHAI RVAN MCCOMBI E: Thank you. Anybody el se?

(Wtness sworn.)

M5. HUGHES: W nane is Holly Ann Hughes. |
own the property ending in 015 at 306 Al gonqui n Road.

Did you want ny full pin?

My pin is 01-22-201-015.

Good evening, ny nane is Holly Ann
Hughes, and |'mthe owner of the property |ocated at
306 Al gonquin Road in South Barrington, identified by
Cook County property pin nunber 01-22-201-015.

Thank you for allow ng ne the
opportunity to speak this evening regarding the
proposed annex of ny property into the Village of
South Barrington. This property has been in ny
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1 famly since 1960, for over 65 years. It was

2 originally owed by ny father and | ater passed down

3 to his children, as ny brother had said.

4 Over the decades, nothing about the

5 property has changed. It has remained part of

6 Unincorporated Cook County. As ny brother, Henry,

7 owns the adjacent property next to mne, which ny

8 father left us.

9 | would like first to state clearly
10 that | do not wish for ny property to be annexed into
11 South Barrington and its village. M/ property has
12 historically been | ocated in Unincorporated Cook
13 County, and | see no benefit to ny property in
14 becom ng part of your village.

15 | would also like to provide a brief
16 tineline to help explain how unexpected this

17 situation has been for ne. M property was |listed
18 for sale in the Multiple Listing Service on Novenber
19 17, 2025. In Decenber 2025, | received two offers
20 frompotential buyers. Negotiations continued until
21 the end of Decenber, at which point |I denied

22 accepting their offer.

23 I n January, one of those sane buyers
24 returned with a renewed interest in purchasing the
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property. On February 2, 2026 | accepted this offer,
and the property is currently under contract. The
buyer's offer was made based on the understandi ng
that the property is located in Unincorporated Cook
County.

On January 20th of 2026, it was
brought to ny attention by ny real estate broker that
ny property had appeared on the Village of South
Barrington's January 8th agenda for discussion of
annexation. This was the first time | had heard
anyt hi ng about a possi bl e annexation of ny property.
| imediately attenpted to contact the Village
Adm ni strator, M. Mchael Dropka, to understand why
ny property had appeared on that agenda. M call was
not returned.

On February 18th, | was inforned
that statenents were being made by nenbers/trustees
of the Village of South Barrington suggesting that ny
property had al ready been annexed, and that |, the
owner, had been fully notified. This was very
concerning to ne, because | had no idea or notice of
any annexation action.

The foll ow ng norning, on February

19th, | went in person to the Village offices to
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speak directly to M. Dropka. During that
conversation, M. Dropka clarified that my property
had not been annexed, but that it was under
consideration. He proceeded to show ne the map of
South Barrington, and to ny di smay, even nentioned
that it would like nicer on the map if the line was
strai ght across continui ng anongst all of the
properties that were adjacent to ny parcel, that was
under annexati on consi derati on.

At that time, | clearly stated that
| did not wish for ny property to be annexed, as |
see no benefit to nmy property in becomng part of the
Village of South Barrington. M. Dropka indicated
that he intended to neet wwth the parties invol ved,
so that annexation concerns coul d be discussed;
however, | did not receive any foll ow up regarding
such neeti ng.

On March 4th of 2026, | personally
delivered a Freedom of Information Act requesting to
the Village seeking records that mght help ne
under stand how and why this annexation proposal was
i nitiated.

G ven these circunstances, |

respectfully have several questions that | hope the
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Comm ssion can help clarify for the public record:

1) When and how was the Village's
determ nation nade that ny property was eligible for
annexati on?

What docunentation or records were
relied upon by the Village in determning the
annexation status of ny property?

What date was ny property added to
t he January 8, 2026 agenda?

CHAI RMAN MCCOMBIE: | -- The first we've
heard about this, so our zoning, we heard about it
when we were given the docunents for this neeting.

MS. HUGHES: For tonight?

CHAl RVAN MCCOMBI E: That's when we found out
that the properties, the three properties, we'll cal
t hem one property, whatever that is, that's when we
found out that they were going -- that they were to
be annexed, and they were asking for it to go before
our Pl anning & Zoni ng.

M5. HUGHES: So we don't know -- January 8th
when it was on the agenda, you had no notice of that
either as | had no notice of that?

CHAI RMVAN MCCOMBI E: Agai n, we woul d not be

the -- The agendas associated wth the Board
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1 neetings, we don't -- W don't get those agendas.

2 M5. HUGHES: GCkay. Thank you.

3 Were there any communi cati ons or

4 discussions with potential purchasers or devel opers

5 regardi ng annexation, zoning or possible special use

6 permts approval before |, as a property owner, was

7 notified by the Village that annexation was bei ng

8 considered?

9 CHAl RMVAN MCCOMBI E:  So you have to renenber
10 what this Board is, this is Planning & Zoning. Wat
11 we're doing is we're | ooking at planning and zoni ng
12 itens in front of us.

13 If you are asking us -- If you are
14 asking us, are we aware of any devel opers having

15 discussions with anybody, we woul d never be involved
16 in that discussion, because we're Planning & Zoning.
17 M5. HUGHES: GOkay. | understand the Village
18 previously attenpted annexati on of the sane parcels
19 in 2002 and that the property ultimately returned to
20 unincorporated status.

21 Could the Village pl ease explain

22 what condition or circunstances have changed since
23 that time that now justify annexation?

24 CHAI RVAN MCCOMBI E:  Again, this was -- Wat
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we had said in the very beginning of this was that
there's a desire from Cook County to have the parcels
that are renote, that are not part of -- that are
bei ng serviced by Cook County, to have them be part
of avillage, if they're surrounded by that vill age.

M5. HUGHES: So ny question, | guess, should
be going to Cook County then, why haven't they

notified us, as owners, of their intention.

CHAl RVAN MCCOMBI E: | guess so. You know - -
M5. HUGHES: Right. | nean, it's ny
property. | should be aware of this, and I'mthe

| ast to know t hese things.

So you're stating that the Village
wasn't aware my property was actively -- Was the
Village aware that ny property was actively listed
for sale at the time annexati on was bei ng di scussed?

Apparently not, you're saying.

CHAI RMAN MCCOMBI E:  Just a second. Again,
this is Zoning -- Planning & Zoning. W would never
be involved in that at that stage. So you should ask
the Village Board that in this case.

M5. HUGHES: GCkay. What benefit does the
Vill age believe annexation would provide to ny

property specifically?
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CHAI RVAN MCCOMBI E:  Well, | think the thing
t hat annexing your property will allowthe Village to
better serve the area. W're not -- You know, you've
got the police and services |like that --

M5. HUGHES: | have all of the things | need,
the benefits fromthe County, |'ve had for 65 years.

CHAI RMAN MCCOMBI E: | understand, but you
just said that you're going to build sonething on it,
right. You're going to sell it and build sonething
on it?

M5. HUGHES: That's pending still.

CHAI RVAN MCCOMBI E: Oh, okay. You just said
you were --

MS. HUGHES: Right, but that's pending.

CHAl RVAN MCCOMBI E:  You -- But if you're
going to have the potential to do that, and then
t hose people are going to -- |If they need to have
services, the services have to cone from Cook County.

MS. HUGHES: We'll still be there.

CHAI RVAN MCCOMBI E: Oh, Cook County wil |
definitely be there, but Cook County Police, if
they're going to cone out to the property because
there's an altercation or sonething, now | don't know

what you're building on it, but whatever you're
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building on it, if there's a problem the police may
be an hour away, half an hour away, 45 m nutes, |
don't know. They could be a long way. But if you
were in South Barrington, they're down the street.

M5. HUGHES: Ckay. | respectfully request
clarification as to whether the Village is aware of
any prior legal determ nations regarding the
annexation status of this property or the surrounding
area.

CHAl RMAN MCCOMBI E: You're asking if we
previ ously knew about ?

M5. HUGHES: Right. Determ ning regarding
t he annexation status of this property or any
surroundi ng area property.

CHAI RMAN MCCOMBI E:  We're tal king about the
annexation tonight.

M5. HUGHES: Right, of any other property,
because you stated that Cook County wants al
uni ncor porated property --

CHAl RVAN MCCOMBI E:  Ri ght .

M5. HUGHES: Are you aware of any ot her
property that's unincorporated that --

CHAI RMVAN MCCOMBI E:  |'m aware of ot her

properties that are unincorporated.
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M5. HUGHES: That are there.

As a property owner, this situation
Is extrenmely concerning, particularly because the
property is currently under contract for sale, based
on the understanding that it's |located in
Uni ncor por at ed Cook County.

Because this matter coul d
significantly affect the pending sale of ny property,
| respectfully request that the Village proceed
cautiously and ensure that all historical records and
| egal determinations related to this property have
been fully revi ewed.

| have al so submtted a Freedom of
| nformati on Act request so that | may better
understand the history and comuni cati on of everyone
i nvolved in the surrounding -- this proposal.

Finally, | respectfully ask that the
Conmi ssion take these circunstances in to
consi deration and recogni ze ny clear objection to the
annexation of ny property. | do not support the
annexation of ny property into the Village. M
famly has owned this land for many decades, and it's
remai ned part of the Unincorporated Cook County

t hrough that tine.
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Thank you for allow ng ne tonight to
speak and respectfully request that ny statenent and
guestions be answered in the public record.

Sincerely, Holly A Hughes.

Thank you all.

CHAI RMAN MCCOMBI E: Thank you. Does anybody
have any questions?

VI LLAGE ADM NI STRATOR DROPKA: Just, if | may
real quick. | did want to address sonme of the itens
by Ms. Hughes. | appreciated speaking with her, and
| believe your real estate agent, right, we had a
conversation as well.

Wien the topic passed the Village
Board in January, we wanted to know t he pat hway
forward, and so there was a discussion about setting
up a neeting with the honmeowners, to which at that
point while that was transpiring, and I was trying to
figure out a neeting date between the Mayor, nyself
and the honeowners, Dam an. M. Hughes did place a
phone call. | did not return the call, as | did not
have anything to report at that tinme, right, and we
were trying to nake arrangenents for a neeting. The
meeti ng never happened, and in fact, we had three

separate neetings and a phone neeting, but the
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meeting wth everybody never occurred, to which the
i ndi vi dual neetings took place.

And then yes, we received a FO A
FO A has not been answered yet. W do have the |ega
time franme to answer FOA which we will. W wll
get all of those documents to you.

So | hope that provides
clarification to this Comm ssion.

CHAI RMAN MCCOMBI E: | have a questi on.

How big is that parcel?

MR. DEMLOW Aggregate, taxable, 19.74 acres.

CHAl RVAN MCCOMBI E: No, for the m ddle one we
were just tal king about.

M5. HUGHES: Mmne is 7 1/2. 7.75.

CHAI RVAN MCCOMBI E:  Ckay. And aggregate you
said is 19?

MR. DEMLOW About 19 and three-quarters.

CHAI RVAN MCCOMBI E:  Thank you.

kay. |Is there anyone el se?

MR. OLSEN. Thank you for letting nme speak
today. M nane is Rich dsen, 306 Al gonquin Road,
the property that's being annexed --

CHAI RMAN MCCOMBI E: | have to swear you in.

(Wtness sworn.)
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CHAI RVAN MCCOMBI E:  State your name again.
MR OLSEN: Rich O sen.

First of all, | would |ike to say, |
|ive at the property that's getting annexed, and for
sone reason, it's inpossible for the Village to
believe to send ne a letter. Wy would they not send
nme a letter at nmy property that |I'mgetting annexed
on, it seens bizarre. Does it not seem bizarre?
They can't find ny mailbox. | get mail every day.

W weren't properly served. W
finally got a letter on another piece of property we
own, just like a day or two ago. So ny | awer says
that we haven't even been given | egal due process
even to do this, you know. So this just seens |ike
railroad, after railroad or just |ike who owns the
property here. | don't understand. |f you guys
don't want what's done with the property, why don't
you just buy the property fromher, and then all of
us can nove on with our |ives.

VWhat | want is an apol ogy fromyou,
because do you live in Unincorporated Cook County?

CHAI RVAN MCCOMBI E: No.
MR. OLSEN. Have you called the police for
Uni ncor por at ed Cook County?
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CHAI RVAN MCCOMBI E: No.

MR OLSEN. So you're telling everyone on the
Board here, that it takes an hour for the cops to
cone to Unincorporated Cook County. | want you to
apol ogi ze right now. You tell themthat you never
called the village, so you don't know if it takes an
hour. | called them and they're there in three to
five m nutes.

CHAI RMVAN MCCOMBI E:  Ckay.

MR. OLSEN: So can you tell these people that
you were wong in that statenent?

CHAI RVAN MCCOMBI E: | was w ong.

MR OLSEN: Ckay. Thank you. Because
there's reasons that it shouldn't be annexed, but if
people are telling lies or things that they just want
to enbellish or hearsay, that's not really fair on ny
behal f, is it?

CHAI RMVAN MCCOMBI E: No.

MR OLSEN. | noved into the Village in 1965
to South Barrington. | was a resident for 30 years,
and | bought this property. | nmean, |'mone of you.

Since 1965, we have paid taxes, and | noved there. |
can't understand the treatnment I'mgetting. This is

just ridicul ous.
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And | had a neeting, yes, with the
Village Cerk and the Mayor, and they were trying to
force annex in 2002, which no one knows, there was
| egal reasons why they couldn't do it, and we got
out. Do you understand that, the Trustees?

CHAI RMAN MCCOMBI E: W saw the fact that you
were -- Yeah, it didn't go through.

MR. OLSEN. Yes, because there was | egal
reasons it didn't. They just be nice to us. W were
able to get out.

Then in 2016, | have a letter from

ny attorney to the Mayor, which he forget in 2016

they tried to force annex us. | just found out from
ny | awer today, there was -- | can read it, if you
want .

MAYOR MCCOMBI E:  Yes, please read it.

MR OLSEN: Here is a letter to Dear Ms.
McConmbie. Well, it's along letter. It basically
says that | represent the Osen famly. W're going
to protest this thing.

MAYOR MCCOMBI E:  That we tried to force
annex, there should be a record of that.

M ke, have you seen any record of us

trying to force annexi ng?
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1 VI LLAGE ADM NI STRATOR DROPKA: | have not

2 seen that in 2016.

3 MAYOR MCCOMBI E:  And you researched the

4 property, correct?

5 VI LLAGE ADM NI STRATOR DROPKA:  Yes.

6 MR OLSEN: Here is the letter fromthe

7 Village Manager. You can read this here. It says,

8 they're apparently not annexing -- |looking forward to
9 annexi ng.

10 MAYOR MCCOMBI E:  Yeah, we never noved forward
11 to annex it, to try to annex it.

12 MR OLSEN:  Well, it happens every 10 years.
13 This costs our famly tons of nobney. This is not

14 $50. This could be ten, twenty thousand dollars

15 every tinme you do this. | don't see howit's fair,
16 especially when ny parents have been residents, and
17 1've been a resident since 1965. And then | live

18 there, they don't even send due process. They don't
19 even send the property owner a letter. | have a
20 mailbox. | don't get this. So is this sonething
21 like every 10, 15 years you're just going to keep
22 Dbreaking the guy down so he can't afford it anynore?
23 The reason why | talked to the
24 Village Manager, he gave ne an incredi bl e explanation
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why they're annexing. He wants to nake the Village
line straight. | don't know if you guys have ever

| ooked at a map of the United States. There is very
rarely a straight line in any state. But now South
Barrington is going to set the precedent, because

t hey want straight |ines.

Second of all, | was told later on
t hat Toni Preckw nkle wanted to absorb the
properties. M lawer went back and | went to the
i brary and | ooked back 10 years, there's no records
in the last 10 years of any of that. This is not a
hot topic, you know.

One reason you asked why do | not
want to be in the Village? You started out the
nmeeting harassing to death a guy about vinyl w ndows.
Let nme tell you, | don't have vinyl w ndows on ny
house. My house was built in 1920. It doesn't pass

any codes of South Barrington. So what's going to

happen is every 15 minutes |'lIl get a letter in the
mail, you'll be dragging nme in, this isn't allowed,
this isn't allowed. | have to a get ny |awer on

phone say hey, this is a legal right. You know, why
would I want to go through this? | nmean, it just

seens bizarre, you know.
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Oh, ny plan with the property is
we' ve never sold any property we ever bought. W
have all of our property. | have no kids. M plan
Is to some day hand this down and have it be a park.
|'ma great fan of the Boy Scouts of America. | was
an Eagle Scout ny whole life, and 1'd really like to
donate it to them If all a sudden | have to fight
continuously that isn't go to happen. That's a dream
of mne. | don't why six nenbers can cone up and
make a dreamruined. |t seenms so bizarre, you know.
And like the Village only

services -- Does the Village right here have a fire
department? Every village has a fire departnent, but
South Barrington doesn't, and I'mgetting all these
great services, but you don't have a fire departnent.

CHAI RMAN MCCOMBI E:  The fire department, the
services are through Countryside.

MR. OLSEN. | know, but you said the Village
provi des all of these services. There's not even a
fire departnent. Most towns have their own fire
departnment. So all of these great services | get
don't even exist here, you know. This just seens too
bi zarre.

CHAI RMAN MCCOMBI E: Countryside. You pay for
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It, Countryside.

MR. OLSEN: Yeah, |'malready getting it
anyway, so if | join you, |I'"'mnot getting it anyway.
' mjust saying, all these great services.

CHAl RVAN MCCOMBI E: You know, so | nean,
your -- | nean, you've obviously you built a house
and didn't foll ow any codes at all.

MR OLSEN. | have not built anything. The
house was there, like | said, since 1920s.

CHAI RMAN MCCOMBI E: It was built in the
1920s. Does it follow any codes at all?

MR OLSEN: | doubt it. 1920 what was the
code? | don't even know Barrington -- First of all,
It was unincorporated then.

CHAI RMAN MCCOMBI E:  That doesn't nean they
didn't follow codes. Cook County was already
established. There were codes associ ated wth Cook
County. Did they foll ow any of the codes?

MR OLSEN. | could say this for sure, no,
and the only reason is it's farm and, and we've gone
to the County before and asked to do things, and they
said since you're a farm you don't even need a
permt. Just build it. That is what -- W went 20

years ago. | never built anything, but that's what
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he said, you know.

CHAI RVAN MCCOMBI E:  Ckay. So you' ve net
Dam an. Have you net?

MR. OLSEN: No.

CHAl RMVAN MCCOMBI E:  So what we do is we have
in the -- in our village, we have a series of codes
that the homes are built, and those codes protect the
peopl e inside the homes and they protect the people
that |ive next to them

MR. OLSEN. Okay. Wat does that nean?

CHAI RVAN MCCOMBI E:  That neans that they're
constructed in a way that's safe, that the people can
|ive there and don't have to worry about, | don't
know, fire or anything else. You know, the codes
protect the residents of the hone.

MR OLSEN. The buildings were built since
1920, they nust have -- I'mstill living there. They
must have done a sonewhat decent job, correct?

CHAI RVAN MCCOMBI E:  What do you want ne to
say?

MR OLSEN: | don't know.

CHAI RVAN MCCOMBI E:  The thing is that
what ever the Village has for its rules and its

regulations, it's -- You saw the vinyl-w ndow thing
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1 was sonething that sonebody -- The rules are already
2 in there.

3 COW SSI ONER KWASEK:  What ever he has that

4 exists is grandfathered.

5 MR OLSEN O do | have to put all new

6 w ndows in?

7 COW SSI ONER KWASEK:  It's only if you do

8 changes or new construction, which you have to conply
9 wth Cook County current code if you do new

10 construction in Cook County. But what exists,

11 exists. |It's called grandfathered.
12 MR OLSEN: If you look in the dictionary at
13 the word despicable, it's forcing people to do
14 sonething they don't want to do. So if you vote on
15 it and it gets annexed, you could go hone and tell
16 your famly |I did a great despicable act today.
17 Thank you.
18 CHAl RMAN MCCOMBI E: Ckay. Any ot her
19 coments?
20 MS. STEVENS: Hell o.
21 CHAI RVAN MCCOMBI E: Hel | o.
22 (Wtness sworn.)
23 MS. STEVENS:. Colleen Stevens, S-t-e-v-e-n-s.
24 | amthe real estate broker, who represents Holly
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1 Hughes. | listed her property, 306 Al gonqui n,
2 Ol-22-201-015.
3 Thank you for allow ng ne the
4 opportunity to speak this evening as well.
5 On COctober 14, 2025, just prior to
6 listing this property, | called the Village of South
7 Barrington to confirmthe property was |ocated in
8 Unincorporated South Barrington. This was confirned
9 by the Village, and al so confirnmed the sane
10 information wth Cook County.
11 | listed the property for sale in
12 the private listing network initially on Cctober 15,
13 2025 and then listed it in the Multiple Listing
14 Service, the M.S, on Novenber 17th. |In Decenber, as
15 Holly mentioned -- In Decenber 2025, as Holly
16 nentioned, the seller received two offers from
17 perspective buyers. Negotiations continued through
18 the end of Decenber, at which point the seller chose
19 not to accept either offer.
20 I n January, one of buyers from
21 Decenber was still interested and returned with an
22 updated offer on the property, and on February 2,
23 2026, the seller accepted the buyer's offer and the
24 property is currently under contract.
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As part of the marketing
representation of this property, it has consistently
been presented and understood to be located in
Uni ncor porated Cook County. That's one thing |
wanted to be really sure | don't msrepresent where a
property is |ocated, you know, during marketing of
the property. The buyer's offer was nade based on
t he understanding that this property is, in fact, in
Uni ncor porat ed Cook County.

On January 20, 2026 it was brought
to ny attention there had been sone di scussion about
t he property being annexed into South Barrington.
This was concerning to nme, as | was representing and
mar keting the property as unincorporated. To
confirm | went to the Village website and becane
aware the property had appeared on the Vill age of
South Barrington's website -- I'msorry, on January
8t h agenda for discussion of annexation. This was
the first tinme either | or the property owner had
heard anything regardi ng the possi bl e annexation of
the property. | imediately contacted Holly Hughes
to see if she was aware of this information, and she
was not. She told ne she was going to contact the

village Adm nistrator to understand why the property
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had appeared on that agenda. And it's ny
understanding fromHolly that after she reached out
to M. Dropka, her calls were not returned, and you
answered to that point.

On February 18th, we heard that
statenments were being nade possibly by nmenbers or
trustees or people associated with the Village of
Sout h Barrington, suggesting the property had al ready
been annexed, and that Holly Ann Hughes was notified
and she was nmade fully aware of this. This was not
true. Holly said she was not aware of any annexation
effort and still had not received any notice of
annexation action.

On February 27th, 1, nyself,
contacted M. Dropka and spoke directly with himso |
could confirmsone of the information that had been
goi ng back and forth, and during that conversation,
M. Dropka confirmed the property was currently stil
Uni ncor porated Cook County, had not been annexed. |
mentioned that | confirnmed the status of the property
when preparing the listing in the fall, and | asked
when the annexation di scussion had been initiated,

M. Dropka indicated the matter had not been on the

Village's radar in Novenber, and the annexation
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review was initiated in Decenber and then placed on
t he January agenda.

| al so asked whether the Village had
been aware the property had been listed for sale
prior to those discussions, and M. Dropka indicated
that the property -- the annexation review resulted
froman internal review and the Village had not been
aware the property was on the market. During that
conversation, he also noted that regardl ess of the
out cone of the public hearing process this evening,
the Village Board will ultimately reaches a deci sion
for the annexation, which |I understand is procedure.

From a real estate perspective, this
situation is concerning because the property is
currently under contract for sale, and the buyer's
of fer was made with the understanding the property is
| ocated i n Unincorporated Cook County. Any change to
the jurisdiction of the property could potentially
| npact the pending transaction.

On March 4th, the property owner
personal ly delivered a Freedom of Information Act
request to the Village seeking records related to the
annexation di scussion and additionally she e-nmailed

me, personally, and asked if | could assist her by
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forwardi ng her FO A request on her behalf to nenbers
and trustees of the Village of South Barrington.

For purposes and clarity of the
public record, | do have a few questions of my own
that |'mjust curious about, and I'Il just state
them and then if anyone wants to answer, you know,
that's great.

Wien did the Village first begin
revi ew ng or discussing potential annexation of these
par cel s?

It was off the radar in Novenber,
and it came to discussion in Decenber. Because by
that point, you were already |listed on the narket,
and | -- fromwhat you told nme, no one knew t he
property was for sale.

VI LLAGE ADM NI STRATOR DROPKA: | didn't know
that the property was for sale. | don't think -- |
can't speak on behalf of everybody at the Vill age,
but | certainly did not.

M5. STEVENS: (kay. So that's ny second
guestion, was anyone at the Village aware the
property was actively listed for sale and | ater
pl aced under contract at the sanme tinme annexation

di scussi ons were taking place?
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| n other words, was anyone aware
that this property was on the market, which you can't
speak to, but | would like to understand with the
internal review and discussions, if anyone knew the
property was actually listed for sale?

VI LLAGE ADM NI STRATOR DROPKA:  No. |
can't -- Like | said, | can't speak for the staff or
any of the Trustees, but | nmean, it didn't come up.
It wasn't -- | mean -- | -- | had no know edge t hat
It was for sale or that you were -- the buyer was
under contract.

COW SSI ONER FOX:  There were no signs,
because years prior there was signs al ong Al gonquin
Road for sale for both of those -- or two of them
There were two for sale signs, | think. And then
they seened to go away, but | don't really renenber
when. And | -- In the last six nonths or so, | don't
think there were any signs anynore.

M5. STEVENS: Well, interesting that you
brought that up. There is a sign that | had -- |
have an install date wth ny conpany, but it was
installed shortly after the Novenmber 17th |isting
date, and it was brought to ny attention on February

19th, by ny owner, that that sign was destroyed. It
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1 was a big sign. | have a photo.

2 COM SSI ONER FOX:  There used to be a sign

3 years ago, | thought.

4 M5. STEVENS: Well, | can't speak to that. |
5 wasn't involved wth that.

6 COW SSI ONER FOX:  There was an attenpt to

7 sell before.

8 | drive up and down Al gonquin Road a
9 Ilot, and I had not seen any new sign. So | wasn't
10 aware it was for sale, because | -- and | drive on
11 Algonquin all of the tine.

12 MS. STEVENS. Yeah, there's a sign there, and
13 | have photos of it. | also have a photo of the sign
14 that was destroyed, which | found to be odd, because
15 people drive 50 mles an hour al ong Al gonqui n Road
16 that would have to be | would think intentional.

17 COM SSI ONER FOX: | was just curious.

18 M5. STEVENS: Maybe the one tine you

19 weren't -- you drove past the sign was destroyed. |
20 did have a sign replaced, and there was a sign, a
21 replacenent sign put back on the property.
22 |"mcurious to know, were any
23 Village representatives nade aware of any potenti al
24 concepts related to this property, and if so, was
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that information shared and di scussed with nenbers of
the community prior to the property owner being
notified?

In other words, the party that we're
under contract with right now, was any of -- anything
di scussed wth anyone about what the potential plans
m ght be or is anyone aware of what the potenti al
pl ans m ght be?

VI LLAGE ADM NI STRATOR DROPKA:  So yes, |
think | nentioned earlier that after -- was it [|ast
week, after Holly or Ms. Hughes inforned us that they
were under contract, we received a -- it was
around -- it was an hour later or right before she
cane in or sonething in regards to a potential buyer
wanted to neet with the Mayor and nyself to talk
about the potential sale and how that woul d possibly
| npact and bringing up pretty nmuch the concerns that
you just brought up and what had been nentioned all
ni ght.

MS. STEVENS: \Wich concerns?

VI LLAGE ADM NI STRATOR DROPKA:  Concerns about
there being an issue with the County and goi ng
into -- South Barrington taking over the parcels

versus being in the County.

Paszki ewi cz Court Reporting
(618) 307-9320


https://spreporting.com/

REPORT OF PROCEEDI NGS
March 09, 2026 Page 70

© 00 N oo o b~ w N

N NN NN R R R R R R R R R
A W N P O © 0 N O O M W N L O

M5. STEVENS: Oh, okay. Was that prior to
Ms. Hughes being inforned that her property was --

VI LLAGE ADM NI STRATOR DROPKA:  No.

MS. STEVENS -- forcibly being annexed?

VI LLAGE ADM NI STRATOR DROPKA:  No, this
cane -- This was the neeting -- | actually infornmed
Ms. Hughes that we had a neeting set up, but she
alluded to ne that she had already prior know edge
that we were planning to neet with them And I
believe that that was -- Was that the 26th of
February or maybe it was the 5th of March, |'msorry.

MS. STEVENS: That's okay.

VI LLAGE ADM NI STRATOR DROPKA:  No, |
apol ogi ze. It probably was the 26th of February.

M5. STEVENS:. GCkay. So | just want to nake
sure that she was -- this was before, you know, she
was made fully aware before you had any comruni cation
with -- So you did have conmunication wth the
potential buyers?

VI LLAGE ADM NI STRATOR DROPKA: Yes, after --
after, of course, everybody was notified.

M5. STEVENS: (Ckay. And then |I'm just
curious to know too, and | know it's not ny property,

|'mcurious to know if the Village can expl ain why
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the property owner, why Holly Hughes was not
contacted or notified prior to the property appearing
on the Village's January 8th agenda for annexation
di scussi ons?

That's just procedure, you just put
It on the agenda w thout notifying the property owner
at that tinme or?

VI LLAGE ADM NI STRATOR DROPKA:  So the matter
was referred to the this body, right. So the Village
Board took action on the agenda itemto send the
matter here, to be discussed here, to then send it
back to the Village Board. So it's just a procedure.

MS. STEVENS: So the timng of the property
bei ng on the market had nothing, |ike potential usage
or buyers?

VI LLAGE ADM NI STRATOR DROPKA: Once again, |
mean, | had no knowl edge. One of the Conm ssioners
mentioned she didn't have know edge. |I'mtelling
you, we didn't have any know edge of the property
bei ng for sale.

M5. STEVENS: (kay. So in closing, as the
| i sting broker involved in the transaction, | also
want to know for the record that the buyer's offer,

the current contract we're negotiated based on the
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understanding the property is located in

Uni ncor por at ed Cook County, and because of this
reliance, any change to the jurisdiction or

regul atory status of the property during the pendency
of the transaction creates uncertainty for the
parties involved. So that's -- I'mhere as a
representative of Ms. Hughes and to make sure that |
do the best | can to ensure the integrity of her sale
on her property.

So thank you, and | hope that you'l
take all of this into conversation and al so give ny
notes for the record as well. Thank you.

CHAl RVAN MCCOMBI E: Anybody el se, any ot her
publ i c conmmrent ?

(No response.)

CHAI RMVAN MCCOMBI E:  Ckay.

COW SSI ONER FOX: | do have one question.
So is there a concern that if this property is
brought into South Barrington that the buyer would no
| onger be interested in the property?

M5. STEVENS: | nean, | can't speak for them
It's under contract as unincorporated. That's --
They' re buying the property under that basis.

COW SSI ONER FOX:  Ckay.

Paszki ewi cz Court Reporting
(618) 307-9320



https://spreporting.com/

REPORT OF PROCEEDI NGS
March 09, 2026 Page 73

© 00 N oo o b~ w N

N NN NN R R R R R R R R R
A W N P O © 0 N O O M W N L O

M5. STEVENS: So, | nean, you know. ..

COMM SSI ONER FOX:  And they're going to | eave
it as farnl and?

MS. STEVENS. There woul d be some changes,
right, for any potential buyers, the jurisdiction
woul d change.

COW SSI ONER FOX: | guess it woul d depend on
what it is they're going to build there. |Is there a
concern -- |I'mwondering why the concern is the sale

won't go through because it's not in Cook County.

M5. STEVENS: It's a concern of mne, because
| don't know. | nean, | don't know. They may
decide -- The property is under contract based on

bei ng uni ncor porated, which obviously gives them nore
flexibility, depending on what they're going to
build, right. |If it gets transferred into the
Village of South Barrington, well, then the rules
wi | | change.

COM SSI ONER FOX:  There wi |l be hi gher
standards --

M5. STEVENS: Exactly.

COM SSI ONER FOX -- they would have to conply
with, and | think their neighbors that are adjacent

to them woul d be concerned about that too.
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COM SSI ONER SHUFF:  And you have no idea
what they're going to build?

MS. STEVENS: | have sone ideas.

COW SSI ONER SHUFF: Do you want to share
t henf?

MS. STEVENS: No. |'mnot really sure. |
mean, | had sone conversation, but | don't want to
speak for them

COW SSI ONER SHUFF: By the way, | live right
behind them and | had no idea it was for sale
either. | go by there all the tine.

MS. STEVENS: There has been a sign. | nean,
unl ess you're |looking for it, maybe you don't see it.
It's not a billboard, but it's not a small sign.
It's a decent sign. You'll see it fromthe road,
yeah.

MR M CHALSKI: When we net in the village
hall with the potential buyer, the buyer shared with
us that -- and this is actually the -- It's an
I slam c community center. That's what they want to
build and a nosque on this parcel. They have been
| ooking for a parcel in the Village of South
Barrington. They were interested in two parcels that

zoning would not allow themto build the nbsque in.
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1 So the -- When we net, they -- They're not concerned
2 to be -- That's what | understood and that's what

3 I've taken fromthat neeting, they want to be in this
4 area. They want to be in the South Barrington area,
5 and this parcel would suit their needs. So it would
6 be essentially -- W were shown a rendering as well.
7 1t would be a centerpiece and with four different

8 wngs, a parking lot and so on. So it would be a

9 comunity center/nosque, worship area, and | believe
10 sone kind of school mght be init as well.

11 COW SSI ONER FOX:  But that would not -- That
12 would -- They're | ooking for a parcel because they
13 need a certain anmount of space, right?

14 MR M CHALSKI: That's correct.

15 COW SSI ONER FOX:  And that woul dn't

16 necessarily be sonething that couldn't happen in the
17 Village of South Barrington anyway.

18 MR MCHALSKI: That's correct. If the

19 parcel were to be annexed, then we could control to
20 shield it or build a bermfromthe -- fromthe
21 residential parcels that this parcel is backing to.
22 | don't think the Village is opposed
23 to have a nobsque being built in there. There is
24 nobody -- Nobody is against it. W would just |ike
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to make sure that our residents are protected as well
froma comercial building.

MS5. STEVENS: Thank you for that.

MR. M CHALSKI: Thank you.

CHAl RMVAN MCCOMBI E:  |s there any other public
comment ?

(No response.)

CHAI RMAN MCCOMBI E:  Ckay. So at this point
we'll take a notion to close the -- close the public
hearing, and we can take a vote, okay.

COW SSI ONER FOX:  What are we exactly voting
on?

CHAI RMAN MCCOMBIE: W're going to vote on
whet her or not to annex the three properties --

COW SSI ONER FOX:  Ckay.

CHAl RVAN MCCOMBI E: -- into South Barrington.

COW SSI ONER SHUFF:  To recommend to the
Boar d.

MAYOR MCCOMBI E:  Paul a McConbi e, 32 Revere.
Is the fact that if you're really worried about them
being in South Barrington and changing their m nd,

t hey already have -- They were going to buy the
Executive Center, which is one property that they

| ooked at, that it is in South Barrington, and the
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ot her property that they | ooked at was also in South
Barrington. So tw ce they | ooked at properties that
ei ther had CC&Rs, that wouldn't allow them or sone
other feature that was not -- | don't know, | didn't
hear about the second one why that actually -- why

t hat wasn't procured; however, there was two in town
that they wanted to be in town, and so | don't know
what they're going to do about the contract. But as
far as wanting to just be in the County and not be in
town, they already | ooked at two that they wanted to
make into the sane thing.

MS. STEVENS: But those didn't cone through.
WAs there a reason why?

MAYOR MCCOMBI E: CC&Rs are not allowed to be
in the Executive Center, and the other property, |
don't know - -

MR M CHALSKI: The other property was off
Penny Road, and it wasn't |arge enough for their
needs with a parking lot, septic field -- a septic
field, I"'msorry, distance for the water well and the
building, itself. So they were |ooking for a |arger
parcel, and they would want to be in South
Barri ngt on.

MAYOR MCCOMBI E:  They did when they were
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| ooki ng.

M5. STEVENS: Thank you for that.
CHAl RVAN MCCOMBI E: Ckay. So at this point,

unl ess there's anything el se, any other public

comments or anyt hi ng?

(No response.)

CHAl RMAN MCCOMWVBI E: Take a notion to cl ose

t he public hearing.

COW SSI ONER SHUFF:  So noved.

CHAl RMVAN MCCOMBI E: Second?

COW SSI ONER ABRI @ Second.

VI LLAGE ADM NI STRATOR DROPKA:
Shuf f ?

COW SSI ONER SHUFF:  Aye.

VI LLAGE ADM NI STRATOR DROPKA:
Gllis?

COW SSI ONER G LLI'S:  Aye.

VI LLAGE ADM NI STRATOR DROPKA:
Abri ?

COW SSI ONER ABRI:  Aye.

VI LLAGE ADM NI STRATOR DROPKA:
Fox?

COW SSI ONER FOX:  Yes.

VI LLAGE ADM NI STRATOR DROPKA:

Comm ssi oner

Comm ssi oner

Comm ssi oner

Comm ssi oner

Comm ssi oner
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Kazm er?

COWM SSI ONER KAZM ER:  Yes.

VI LLAGE ADM NI STRATOR DROPKA:  Conmi ssi oner
Kwasek?

COMM SSI ONER KWASEK:  Yes.

VI LLAGE ADM NI STRATOR DROPKA:  Chai rman
McConbi e?

CHAl RVAN MCCOMBI E:  Yes.

Ckay. So now, let's discuss this.
First, what there is we're nmaking a recomendation to
the Village Board that we think it's in the Village's
best interest that we annex, and |I'mgoing to call
themthree properties, but annex that property into
the Village or we nake a recommendati on not to annex
the property into the Village.
| mean, being that they have a buyer

for the parcel of land, and the buyer for the parcel
of land, from what has been said to us, said they
want to be in South Barrington, that's a good
I ndi cation that they would want to be in South
Bar ri ngt on.

COW SSI ONER KAZM ER: | would |ike to add
sonet hing. W have a parcel or the Park District had

a parcel in South Barrington, we brought in a parcel
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t hat was Uni ncor porated Cook County. They're
building just 4 feet fromour property line, 4 feet
fromour property line. I'mtalking -- Barrington
Pool is built within 4 feet, when we have 50 feet
easenents. | think it's inportant to take care of
our neighbors in the east and west and the south,
which | think you said you're south, right?

COW SSI ONER SHUFF:  Yep.

COWM SSI ONER KAZM ER: W al so have nei ghbors
on the east and west. W have Nathans G en on the
west, and we have a farm | think -- it's a farmor
farmhouse on the east. Not your farm but there is
one to the east of you. | think it's inportant that
we protect our residents also.

COWMM SSI ONER KWASEK: | have a question. So
what was the vehicle for us hearing fromthe County
that they want us to annex? Was it a verbal at a
neeting? Was it a verbal -- Was it -- Dd we get a

letter? Is it in mnutes sonewhere?

CHAl RMVAN MCCOMBI E: | don't know.

VI LLAGE ADM NI STRATOR DROPKA: | know t hat
t he Mayor spoke to this -- | don't nean to speak for
her or say what she heard. | have heard that before

as well from not necessarily newspaper articles or
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anything that the general public would hear about,

but it is nore -- it is nore internal neetings from
you know, County, strategic planning neetings from

t he County, CMAP, those types of calls, neetings,

that are for planning purposes. Not necessarily -- |
can't pinpoint exactly where |'ve heard it, but |
have heard it before, and | don't -- | can't speak to
where the Mayor has heard it. But that's where |
have heard it from

MR MCHALSKI: And | may say sonet hing,
probably nost of you renenber Nathan's Gen. It was
Uni ncor porat ed Cook County, constructed as a
subdi vision, then it was incorporated so people would
live in South Barrington. W have a variance per
| ot, because not all of themneet Village code or
Village zoning ordinance. So there's -- Right now,
every structure that was constructed in Nathan's G en
has different variances per lot. Thank you.

CHAl RMVAN MCCOMBI E: And | think that John's
point is well taken about Barrington Pools. They
built, you know, right on the property line. 1It's
that -- just that's the thing that makes a difference
I f you have setbacks and the rest of it, and we give

variances to people for things for setbacks and
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t hi ngs when a hardship is shown.

COM SSI ONER KAZM ER:  They are not 4 feet.
W dealt wth one we went from20 to 15 or 25 to 20.
W didn't grant 4 foot setback.

CHAI RVAN MCCOMBI E: No. No. No.

So anyway, at this point, unless
there is any other discussion, we take a vote whether
we recomend to the Board that they be annexed or
not. Let's put it -- Do we recommend to the Board
that three -- that the parcels be incorporated,
annexed into South Barrington, that's a notion.

COW SSI ONER ABRI: | make a noti on.

CHAI RVAN MCCOMBI E:  Ckay. A second?

COW SSI ONER G LLI'S:  Second.

CHAI RMAN MCCOMBIE: Ckay. So let's do a roll
cal I.

VI LLAGE ADM NI STRATOR DROPKA:  Conm ssi oner
Shuff?

COWM SSI ONER SHUFF:  Yes.

VI LLAGE ADM NI STRATOR DROPKA:  Conmi ssi oner
Gllis?

COWM SSI ONER G LLI'S:  Yes.

VI LLAGE ADM NI STRATOR DROPKA:  Conm ssi oner
Abri ?
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COW SSI ONER ABRI :  Yes.
VI LLAGE ADM NI STRATOR DROPKA: Conmi ssi oner

Fox?

COW SSI ONER FOX:  Yes.

VI LLAGE ADM NI STRATOR DROPKA:  Commi ssi oner
Kazm er ?

COW SSI ONER KAZM ER: Yes.

VI LLAGE ADM NI STRATOR DROPKA:  Comnmi ssi oner
Kwasek?

COW SSI ONER KWASEK: | abstai n.

VI LLAGE ADM NI STRATOR DROPKA:  Chai rman
Mc Conbi e?

CHAI RMAN MCCOMBI E: Yes.
kay. Next -- The reconmendati on
has been nade.
The next itemhere is if there's any
ol d business to cone before us?
(No response.)
CHAl RVAN MCCOMBI E: Any new busi ness?
(No response.)
CHAl RMVAN MCCOMVBI E:  Ckay. At this tine ||
take a notion to adjourn.
COW SSI ONER ABRI:  So noved.
CHAI RMVAN MCCOVBI E:  All those in favor aye?
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(Chorus of ayes.)
Any opposed?
(No response.)

Heari ng none, we are

(The neeting concl uded

at 8:38 p.m)

* *
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STATE OF ILLINO S )
)
COUNTY OF COOK )

|, DEBORAH R SANTI, Certified Shorthand
Reporter, of the State of Illinois, do hereby certify
that | reported in shorthand the proceedings had in
the aforesaid matter, and that the foregoing is a
true, conplete and correct transcript of the
proceedi ngs had as appears fromthe stenographic

notes so taken to the best of ny ability.

Il '-I t: e f R AL

%,

DEBORAH R. SANTI, CSR
CSR # 084-004107
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